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I am pleased to present the annual report of GFT Holdings Limited

(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 December 2006.

2006 is another harsh year for the players in toy industry. Industry

downturn and customers' conservation exert overwhelming

pressure on pricing and margin. Worsened by the persisting

unfavourable factors impacting manufacturers in Mainland China,

like escalating material cost, heightened minimum wages and

Renminbi appreciation, the Group suffered from loss in the year

under review.

We have proactively taken appropriate means to overcome the

difficulties, such as exploring new market niches, streamlining

production process and tightening cost control. We have also

divested the non-performing subsidiaries and the vacant lands

that do not have immediate use. It is anticipated that the

unfavourable market conditions in toy industry shall persist in

the ensuing years and thus we further propose to cut out the

manufacturing business so as to prevent the Group from suffering

further losses and cash outflow and to reallocate more resources

to other promising areas, including toy, gift and premium trading

business and other potential investments.

We recognise that the value of the Company is driven by earnings

and growth. Hence, we will make good use of the fund raised

from the recent placing of new shares of the Company in March

and April 2007 to invest in business with attractive potential of

growth and profitability. We are optimistic that the Group will

sail through the difficult period and poise to embark on the next

era of expansion.

Finally, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to my fellow

directors and staff for their dedicated contribution and faithfulness

in the past turbulent years and the continuous support from our

suppliers, customers, bankers and business partners.

Leung Wai Ho

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 23 April 2007
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The year passed is definitely a difficult year to the Group.

Pessimistic market sentiment and customers’ conservation in toy

industry amplify the competition and create severe pressure on

the volume, pricing and margin. Similar to many other toy

manufacturers, the Group faces with shrinkage in its toy business.

In year 2006, the segment of toy trading and manufacturing

reported a turnover of HK$130.1 million, being a decline of

HK$27.4 million or 17.4% when compared with last year.

In line with the target to focus the Group’s resources, business in

the segments other than toy trading and manufacturing continued

to diminish during the year. Following the divestment of the non-

performing business, only approximately HK$2.5 million was

recorded as turnover from segments other than toy business,

representing a drop of HK$19.2 million or 88.5% when compared

with last year.

OPERATION REVIEW

The manufacturing plant at Boluo, Huizhou continues to be the

main operation site of the Group. The management persisted to

streamline the production process and exercise stringent measures

on cost control during the year. Nevertheless, various unfavourable

factors relentlessly defeating manufacturers in Mainland China,

like escalating material cost, heightened minimum wages,

unstable utilities supplies and Renminbi appreciation, counteract

the management’s effort. Furthermore, the shrinkage in sales

mentioned before also affected the operations in a way that

production capacity was not fully utilised during the year.

The management considers that toy industry will remain tough

in the coming years, especially for the manufacturers in Southern

China and hence proposes to cut out the suffering manufacturing

operation so as to preserve the Group's resources.

130,100,000

27,400,000 17.4%

2,500,000

19,200,000 88.5%
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Material disposal of subsidiaries

In June 2006, the Group disposed of its entire interests in two

non-wholly owned subsidiaries, Thunder Force Limited and

Thunder Tech Electronic Co., Limited, following which the Group

ceased to have any operations in the segment of consumer

products trading and manufacturing and recorded a gain of

approximately HK$0.36 million from the disposal.

In order to further focus the Group’s resources, the Company

entered into an agreement in November 2006 to dispose of its

entire interest in Good Prosper Trading Limited (“GPTL”) and

GPTL’s subsidiaries, the principal assets of which are the land use

rights in respect of parcels of adjacent lands with an aggregate

site area of approximately 145,395 square meters situated at 

 (Jiu Tan Dao, Yuan Zhou Zhen,

Boluo County, Guangdong Province, the PRC) and the

infrastructure erected thereon. The subject lands have been vacant

since acquisition by the Group in year 2004 and there is no

concrete development plan. The transaction is expected to be

completed in May 2007.

Subsequent to the year end in April 2007, the Company entered

into another agreement to dispose of its entire interest in GFT

Holding Limited group, a subgroup of the Company engaging in

toy manufacturing at Boluo, Huizhou and toy trading, to a

company beneficially owned by Mr. Leung Wai Ho and Mr. Wong

Chung Shun, the chairman and deputy chairman of the Company.

Because of the adverse environment facing by the toy

manufacturers in Mainland China, GFT Holding Limited group

suffered from substantial loss during the year under review and

hardly be recovered in the near future. Hence, it is expected that

the disposal will preserve the Group’s resource to develop other

potentially profitable business. The disposal constitutes a major

disposal and connected transaction for the Company under the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and is subject to the

approval by the independent shareholders of the Company in a

special general meeting.

360,000

Good Prosper

Trading Limited GPTL

145,395

GFT Holding Limited

GFT Holding

Limited

GFT Holding Limited
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Financial Review

Review of Results

The Group reported a turnover from continuing operations of

approx imate ly  HK$130.1 mi l l ion for  the year  ended

31 December 2006, representing a decrease of HK$35.7 million

or 21.5% when compared with last year. Out of this HK$35.7

million decline, HK$8.3 million was attributable to the inactiveness

of securities trading and investment segment. The remaining

HK$27.4 million came from the toy products segment, being the

consequence of the tough and keen competition in toy industry

during the year. In respect of the disposed consumer products

segment, the turnover decreased from HK$13.3 million to HK$2.5

million for the year under review.

Gross profit dropped by HK$26.3 million from HK$26.5 million

to HK$0.2 million when compared with last year. The substantial

decrease in gross profit was partly due to non-contributing

securities trading which recorded gross profit of HK$2.9 million

in prior year. Whilst, certain unfavourable factors impacting the

toy business, including severe price competition, thinned margin,

escalating material cost, wages and other direct production cost,

were the critical reasons.

In the year under review, conservative provisions had been made

for obsolete inventories and doubtful debts. Together with the

fair value of the share options granted during the year as

computed and recognised as an expense under the provisions of

new accounting standards, administrative and other expenses

increased when compared with prior year. The low level of gross

profit was insufficient to cover the inflated expenses and as a

consequence the Group suffered from loss attributable to equity

holders of HK$36.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2006.

130,100,000

35,700,000 21.5%

35,700,000 8,300,000

27,400,000

13,300,000

2,500,000

26,500,000 200,000

26,300,000

2,900,000

36,600,000
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2006, total borrowings of the Group

amounted to HK$12.4 million (2005: HK$8.3 million), of which

HK$10.6 million (2005: HK$3.4 million) was repayable within one

year. The borrowings include a secured bank loan of approximately

HK$8.8 million (2005: HK$nil) and obligations under finance lease

of HK$3.6 million (2005: HK$5.3 million).

The gearing ratio, expressed as the percentage of total liability

over equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company, of

the Group as at 31 December 2006 was 83.7% (2005: 62.0%).

The increase was due to, on one hand, the new secured bank

loan with year end balance of approximately HK$8.8 million

obtained during the year to finance the working capital of the

Group and, on the other hand, the net reduction in equity resulted

from the loss incurred by the Group during the year.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2006, certain building, land use right and

plant and machinery with carrying values of HK$38.0 million

(2005: HK$nil), HK$3.4 million (2005: HK$nil) and HK$4.8 million

(2005: HK$6.0 million) respectively were pledged to banks to

secure the bank loans and finance leases granted to the Group.

Exposure to Exchange Rates

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities

are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and

Renminbi. The Group’s exposure to United States dollars currency

risk is minimal as Hong Kong dollars is pegged to United States

dollars. Nevertheless, as Renminbi is becoming more volatile, the

Group’s operations and performances might thus be affected.

Presently, the Group does not have any currency hedging policy

but will closely monitor the fluctuation of Renminbi exchange

rate and take appropriate measures to minimise any adverse

impact that may be caused by such fluctuation.

1 2 , 4 0 0 , 0 0 0

8,300,000 10,600,000 (

3,400,000 )

8,800,000 (

) 3,600,000 (

5,300,000 )

8 3 . 7 %

62.0%

( 8,800,000 )

38,000,000 ( )

3,400,000 ( ) 4,800,000

( 6,000,000 )
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no material contingent liabilities save that a writ

o f  s u m m o n s  d a t e d  8  O c t o b e r  2 0 0 4  w a s  f i l e d  b y

Mr. Kwok Chin Wing, a former director of the Company, against

the Company in respect of the loans due from two former

subsidiaries of the Company for a sum of approximately HK$44.5

million together with accrued interests thereof (the “Action”).

The Company had already completed discovery of documentary

evidence and exchange of witness statements and was ready to

proceed with the trial since early 2006. However, Mr. Kwok took

out applications in July 2006 for substantial amendments to his

Re-Re-Amended Statement of Claim (the “Amendment

Application”) and joinder of party to the Action (the “Joinder

Application”). The Amendment Application and the Joinder

Application had substantially delayed the setting down of the

Action for trial.

The Amendment Application and the Joinder Application were

granted by the Court on 19 April 2007 and the parties are now

working on the proper directions to be sought for the further

conduct of the Action. Notwithstanding the substantial

amendments made to the Re-Re-Amended Statement of Claim

and the joining of a new party to the Action, the solicitors and

counsel acting for the Company still hold good for their advice

previously delivered to the Company. With the benefit of the

advice of the solicitors and counsel acting for the Company, the

directors of the Company formed the opinion that Mr. Kwok does

not have a valid claim against the Company and therefore it is

unlikely to have any material adverse financial impact on the

Group.

44,500,000

( )
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had approximately 1,370

employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.

To attract, retain and motivate its employees, the Group has

developed effective remuneration policies that are subject to

review on regular basis. The Group’s employees are remunerated

with competitive packages which are in line with prevailing

industry practice and individual performance. Furthermore, share

option and performance-based bonus scheme are also in place

to recognise the outstanding employees.

1,370
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Wai Ho, aged 51, joined the Company as the chairman

and executive director in November 2003. Mr. Leung has over 20

years of experience in manufacturing and trading of toys and

electronics products.

Mr. Wong Chung Shun, aged 51, joined the Company as the

deputy chairman and executive director in November 2003. Mr.

Wong has over 22 years of experience in the banking industry

and is currently engaged in trading of toys and electronics

products.

Mr. Ha Kee Choy, Eugene, aged 50, joined the Company as an

executive director in July 2004. Mr. Ha holds a Master’s degree in

business administration and is a fellow member of the Association

of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of

Hong Kong. Mr. Ha possesses over 15 years of experience in the

finance and banking industry and acts as director of a number of

private and listed companies in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 50, joined the Company as an

independent non-executive director in July 2004. Mr. Chui holds

a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce (major in Accounting) and is a

practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui is

a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants in the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, aged 53, joined the Company as an

independent non-executive director in January 2004. Mr. Lam is

a Justice of Peace and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong

Kong Special Administrative Region. He holds a Bachelor of Laws

degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is currently a

member of Election Committee, Yuen Long District Council and

Yuen Long District Fight Crime Committee and Ex-Officio Member

of Heung Yee Kuk.

Mr. Lai Wing Leung, Peter, aged 49, joined the Company as an

independent non-executive director in September 2004. Mr. Lai

holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science from the University of Hong

Kong and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Bankers. He has over 25 years of experience in banking and

securities industries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers

that good corporate governance is essential for enhancing

accountability and transparency of a company to the investing

public and other stakeholders. Therefore, the Company commits

to maintain high standard corporate governance practices and

has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended

31 December 2006 except for the deviations described in this

Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of

conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction. Having

made specific enquiry, all directors confirmed that they fully

complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is vested with the key roles of formulating the Group’s

corporate strategic directions and policies; monitoring the

financial performance and internal control system of the Group

and overseeing the performance of management, who is

delegated with the responsibilities of executing the Board’s

decision and in-charging day-to-day operation. In discharging its

responsibilities, the Board meets regularly and acts in good faith,

with due diligence and care.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the

financial statements of the Company.
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The Board comprises three executive directors and three

independent non-executive directors, the biographies of whose

are set out on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report. All the

directors are high caliber executive with diversified industry

expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience to the

Group. The composition of the Board and their respective

attendance in the Board meetings and other committee meetings

during the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

No. of meetings attended/held

Regular Audit Remuneration

full board Committee Committee

meetings meetings meetings

Executive directors

Leung Wai Ho (Chairman) 4/4

Wong Chung Shun (Deputy Chairman) 4/4

Ha Kee Choy, Eugene 4/4 1/1

Independent non-executive directors

Chui Chi Yun, Robert 4/4 2/2 1/1

Lam Kwok Cheong 4/4 2/2 1/1

Lai Wing Leung, Peter 4/4 2/2

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Leung Wai Ho whilst Mr. Wong

Chung Shun, the deputy chairman of the Company, takes the

role of chief executive officer and their roles are segregated.

Non-executive Directors

None of the non-executive directors of the Company is appointed

for specific term which is deviated from Code A.4.1 of the CG

Code. However, as the directors are subject to the retirement by

rotation provisions under the bye-laws of the Company, the

Company considers that sufficient measures have been in place

to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices

are no less exacting than the CG Code.

11 12

A.4.1
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive

directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

(Committee Chairman), Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and Mr. Lai Wing

Leung, Peter. The main role and functions of the Audit Committee

are to review the financial information of the Company, to oversee

the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control

procedure and maintain relations with the auditors of the

Company.

In the year 2006, the Audit Committee held two meetings, during

which the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2005 was reviewed with the auditors of the Company

and the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30

June 2006 was discussed.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was set up with

key responsibilities of recommending the policy and structure for

remuneration of directors and senior management and

determining the remuneration package of executive directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee composed of Mr. Ha Kee Choy,

Eugene (Committee Chairman), Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert and

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong. The committee member met once in the

year ended 31 December 2006 for discussing the remuneration

package of the directors and senior management for the year

2007.

Nomination of Directors

The Board will meet to discuss when nomination of new director(s)

is received or when circumstances requires. In considering the

suitability of a candidate for directorship, the Board will take into

account the candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and

knowledge as well as the prevailing composition, structure and

size of the Board and the requirements under the Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that an effective internal control system

which is designed to monitor and response appropriately to

significant risk, to safeguard assets, to provide reasonable

assurance from fraud and errors and to ensure compliance of

applicable law and regulations is essential for effective and

efficient operations of a company. Furthermore, the internal

control system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the

risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has in place an effective internal control system which

encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation

of duties, close monitoring and is reviewed and enhanced by the

management at regular intervals.

The Board, with the assistance of the management, has conducted

a review on the effectiveness of the internal control system and,

in particular, two key business cycles of the key business segment

were reviewed for the year ended 31 December 2006. Based on

the report on the findings which include recommendations for

further improvement, the directors were satisfied that the Group

has operated an effective internal control system during the year

under review.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2006, remuneration in

respect of audit and non-audit services provided by Messrs.

Moores Rowland Mazars, the auditors of the Company, to the

Group are HK$800,000 and HK$30,000 respectively.

(

800,000 30,000
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The directors present their annual report together with the audited

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its

subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading and

manufacturing of toy, gift and premium. During the year, the

Group discontinued its operation in consumer products trading

and manufacturing.

Details of the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 39

to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 29.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for

the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

39

29

16

26
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 34 and note 27 to the financial statements

respectively.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

contributed surplus is available for distribution. However, the

Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution

out of contributed surplus, if:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby

be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued

share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders

as at 31 December 2006 amounted to HK$227,000 (2005:

HK$18,392,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

34

27

1981

(a)

(b)

227,000

18,392,000
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Wai Ho (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Chung Shun (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy, Eugene

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

Mr. Lai Wing Leung, Peter

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s bye-laws,

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and Mr. Lai Wing Leung, Peter will retire

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting do not have any service contract which is not

determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other that statutory compensation).

The non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation

in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-

executive directors an annual confirmation of independence

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of the

independent non-executive directors are independent.

99

3.13
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the

directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV

of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) were as

follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

Company (the “Shares”)

Number of Shares held by

Percentage

Beneficial Controlled of issued

Name of Director owner corporation Total share capital

Leung Wai Ho (“Mr. Leung”) 22,500,000 330,560,000 353,060,000 18.1%

(Note 3) (Notes 1, 3) (Note 3)

3 1, 3 3

Wong Chung Shun (“Mr. Wong”) 22,500,000 330,560,000 353,060,000 18.1%

(Note 3) (Notes 2, 3) (Note 3)

3 2, 3 3

Notes:

1. The Shares were held by Charm Management Limited, a wholly-

owned subsidiary of New Spread Investments Limited. Each of Excel

Advance Holdings Limited, Good Achieve Holdings Limited and

Grand Achieve Group Limited is interested in one-third of the issued

share capital of New Spread Investments Limited. As Mr. Leung

owns the entire interest in Excel Advance Holdings Limited and

50% of the issued share capital of Grand Achieve Group Limited,

he is deemed to be interested in 330,560,000 Shares held by Charm

Management Limited.

XV

0.01

1. New Spread Investments Limited

Charm Management Limited

Excel Advance Holdings Limited Good

Achieve Holdings Limited Grand Achieve

Group Limited New Spread Investments

Limited

Excel Advance Holdings Limited

Grand Achieve Group Limited

50%

C h a r m  M a n a g e m e n t  L i m i t e d

330,560,000
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2. As Mr. Wong owns the entire interest in Good Achieve Holdings

Limited and 50% of the issued share capital of Grand Achieve

Group Limited, he is deemed to be interested in 330,560,000

Shares held by Charm Management Limited.

3. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general

meeting of the Company on 5 March 2007, shares of the Company

were consolidated on the basis of every five shares of HK$0.01

each into two consolidated shares of HK$0.025 each with effective

from 6 March 2007 (the “Share Consolidation”). The number of

consolidated shares held by Mr. Leung, Mr. Wong and Charm

Management Limited would be 9,000,000, 9,000,000 and

132,224,000 respectively after the Share Consolidation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, none of the

directors or chief executive of the Company and their associates

had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code.

2. Good Achieve Holdings

Limited Grand Achieve

Group Limited 50%

Charm Management Limited

330,560,000

3.

0.01

0.025

Charm Management Limited

9,000,000

9,000,000 132,224,000

352
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set

out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Movements in the share option of the Company during the year

were as follows:

Number of share options

Balance Granted Lapsed Exercised Balance
Exercise as at during during during as at

Name of Director Exercisable Period Price 1.1.2006 the year the year the year 31.12.2006

HK$

Leung Wai Ho 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 1,278,540 — (1,278,540) — —

Wong Chung Shun 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 1,278,540 — (1,278,540) — —

Ha Kee Choy, Eugene 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 1,278,540 — (1,278,540) — —

Chui Chi Yun, Robert 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 1,278,540 — (1,278,540) — —

Lam Kwok Cheong 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 1,278,540 — (1,278,540) — —

Lai Wing Leung, Peter 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 1,278,540 — (1,278,540) — —

Total for directors 7,671,240 — (7,671,240) — —

Employees 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 51,141,600 — (51,141,600) — —

16 November 2006 to 15 November 2008 0.0490 — 37,570,800 — (37,570,800) —

Total for employees 51,141,600 37,570,800 (51,141,600) (37,570,800) —

Others 31 December 2004 to 30 December 2006 0.0676 43,470,360 — (43,470,360) — —

16 November 2006 to 15 November 2008 0.0490 — 37,570,800 — (37,570,800) —

Total for others 43,470,360 37,570,800 (43,470,360) (37,570,800) —

Grant Total 102,283,200 75,141,600 (102,283,200) (75,141,600) —

30



Report of the Directors

GFT Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2006 ��

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as the share options disclosed above, at no time during the

year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any

arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debenture

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no

contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company

had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Interests of the directors in competing businesses to the Group

as at 31 December 2006 required to be disclosed pursuant to

Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were set out as below:—

Nature of competing
Name of Director Name of entity business Nature of interest

Leung Wai Ho General Fast Trading Limited Trading of toys and Director and shareholder
electronic products

United Force Overseas Manufacturing of toys and Director and shareholder
Company Limited electronic products

Wong Chung Shun General Fast Trading Limited Trading of toys and Director and shareholder
electronic products

United Force Overseas Manufacturing of toys and Director and shareholder
Company Limited electronic products

33

8.10

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors was interested in

any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly

or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2006, the interest and short positions of those

persons (other than the directors or chief executive of the

Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

Company (the “Shares”)

Number of Shares held Percentage of

issued

Note Direct interest Deemed interest  share capital

Name of shareholder

Charm Management Limited Charm Management Limited 1 330,560,000 — 16.9%

New Spread Investments Limited New Spread Investments Limited 1 — 330,560,000 16.9%

Excel Advance Holdings Limited Excel Advance Holdings Limited 1 — 330,560,000 16.9%

Good Achieve Holdings Limited Good Achieve Holdings Limited 1 — 330,560,000 16.9%

Grand Achieve Group Limited Grand Achieve Group Limited 1 — 330,560,000 16.9%

Tokyo Unique (Hongkong) Limited 2 194,800,00 — 10.0%

Tokyo Unique Co., Ltd. Tokyo Unique Co., Ltd. 2 — 194,800,000 10.0%

Takeaki Maeda Takeaki Maeda 2 — 194,800,000 10.0%

Notes:

1. Each of Excel Advance Holdings Limited, Good Achieve Holdings

Limited and Grand Achieve Group Limited is interested in one-

third of the issued share capital of New Spread Investments Limited,

which in turn owns the entire interest in Charm Management

Limited. Therefore, each of Excel Advance Holdings Limited, Good

Achieve Holdings Limited, Grand Achieve Group Limited and New

Spread Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in

330,560,000 Shares. Upon the Share Consolidation (as described

in note 3 of the section “Directors’ Interest in Securities” above)

became effective, the 330,560,000 Shares were consolidated into

132,224,000 consolidated shares of HK$0.025 each.

336

0.01

1. Excel Advance Holdings Limited Good

Achieve Holdings Limited Grand Achieve

G r o u p  L i m i t e d N e w  S p r e a d

Investments Limited

New Spread Investments Limited

Charm Management Limited Excel

Advance Holdings Limited Good Achieve

Holdings Limited, Grand Achieve Group

Limited New Spread Investments Limited

330,560,000

3

330,560,000

132,224,000 0.025
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2. Tokyo Unique (Hongkong) Limited is owned as to 67% by Tokyo

Unique Co., Ltd., which in turn is controlled by Mr. Takeaki Maeda.

Thus, both Tokyo Unique Co., Ltd. and Mr. Takeaki Maeda are

deemed to be interested in 194,800,000 Shares. Upon the Share

Consolidation became effective, the 194,800,000 Shares were

consolidated into 77,920,000 consolidated shares of HK$0.025

each.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, the Company

has not been notified of any interests or short positions in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company representing five

percent or more in the issued share capital of the Company and

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases for the year of the Group attributable

to the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers combined

are 16% and 47% respectively.

The percentage of turnover for the year of the Group attributable

to the largest customer and the five largest customers combined

are 23% and 64% respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders (which to

the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the

Company’s share capital) had any interest in the five major

suppliers or customers of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the director as at the latest

practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company

has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet

date are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

2. Takeaki Maeda

Tokyo Unique Co., Ltd. 67%

Tokyo Unique Co., Ltd. Takeaki

Maeda 194,800,000

194,800,000

77,920,000

0.025

5%

336

16% 47%

23% 64%

5%

37
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AUDITORS

During the year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and

Messrs. Moores Rowland Mazars were appointed as the auditors

of the Company.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Moores Rowland

Mazars as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Leung Wai Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2007
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To the members of

GFT Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GFT

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively

referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 107, which

comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheet as at 31

December 2006, and the consolidated income statement,

consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated

cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing

and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and

the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely

to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda

Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance

with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

29 107

90
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s

preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial

statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true

and fair view of the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs

as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Moores Rowland Mazars

Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

23 April 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

(restated)

Continuing operations

Turnover 5 130,085 165,810
Cost of sales (129,847) (139,344)

Gross profit 238 26,466
Other income 6 1,178 8,854
Distribution costs (2,258) (5,675)
Administrative expenses (28,465) (17,994)
Other expenses (6,152) (118)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 32 — 10
Finance costs 12 (930) (85)

(Loss) Profit before taxation (36,389) 11,458
Taxation 10 (76) (872)

(Loss) Profit for the year from
continuing operations (36,465) 10,586

Discontinued operation
(Loss) Profit for the year from

discontinued operation 11 (68) 585

(Loss) Profit for the year 12 (36,533) 11,171

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 14 (36,610) 10,056
Minority interests 77 1,115

(Loss) Profit for the year (36,533) 11,171

(Loss) Earnings per share 15
From continuing and

discontinued operations
Basic (5.59 cents ) 1.60 cents
Diluted           N/A 1.57 cents

From continuing operations
Basic (5.58 cents ) 1.52 cents
Diluted N/A 1.49 cents
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At 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 52,551 65,021
Goodwill 17 4,201 5,733
Prepaid lease payments 18 3,327 8,698
Club debenture 220 220

60,299 79,672

Current assets
Inventories 20 7,175 8,767
Trade and other receivables

21 32,648 45,619
Current portion of prepaid

lease payments 18 72 180
Bank balances and cash 7,136 6,044
Tax recoverable 196 —

47,227 60,610
Non-current assets classified

as held for sale 13 19,127 —

66,354 60,610

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

22 42,532 43,024
Current portion of interest-bearing

borrowings     23 8,800 1,750
Current portion of obligations

under finance leases 24 1,813 1,656
Taxation — 1,734

53,145 48,164
Liabilities associated with

non-current assets classified as
held for sale 13 2,093 —

55,238 48,164

Net current assets 11,116 12,446

Total assets less current

liabilities 71,415 92,118
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current liabilities

Long-term interest-bearing

borrowings 23 — 1,312

Long-term obligations under

finance leases     24 1,801 3,614

1,801 4,926

NET ASSETS 69,614 87,192

Capital and reserves

Share capital 26 19,536 15,785

Reserves 48,616 69,861

Equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company 68,152 85,646

Minority interests 1,462 1,546

TOTAL EQUITY 69,614 87,192

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

23 April 2007

Leung Wai Ho Wong Chung Shun

Director Director
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At 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current asset

Interest in subsidiaries 19 1 1

Current assets

Other receivables 21 69,604 70,280

Bank balances and cash 1,947 39

71,551 70,319

Current liabilities

Other payables 22 2,941 950

Net current assets 68,610 69,369

NET ASSETS 68,611 69,370

Capital and reserves

Share capital 26 19,536 15,785

Reserves 27 49,075 53,585

TOTAL EQUITY 68,611 69,370

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

23 April 2007

Leung Wai Ho Wong Chung Shun

Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Convertible

Share Share Capital options notes equity Translation Accumulated Minority

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 26) (Note) (Note 30)

26  30

At 1 January 2005 15,285 33,124 2,099 — 262 — 21,114 71,884 5,685 77,569

Exchange difference on

translation of financial

statements of overseas

subsidiaries recognised

directly in equity — — — — — 1,399 — 1,399 — 1,399

Released on disposal of

subsidiaries — — — — — — — — (1,961 ) (1,961 )

Profit for the year — — — — — — 10,056 10,056 1,115 11,171

Total recognised income

and expenses for

the year — — — — — 1,399 10,056 11,455 (846 ) 10,609

Dividend paid to minority

shareholders — — — — — — — — (3,293 ) (3,293 )

Issue of shares upon

conversion of

convertible notes 500 2,069 — — (262) — — 2,307 — 2,307

At 31 December 2005

15,785 35,193 2,099 — — 1,399 31,170 85,646 1,546 87,192
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Convertible Accumulated
Share Share Capital options notes equity Translation profits Minority

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Total interests Total

( )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 26) (Note) (Note 30)
26  30

At 1 January 2006 15,785 35,193 2,099 — — 1,399 31,170 85,646 1,546 87,192

Exchange difference on
translation of financial
statements of overseas
subsidiaries recognised
directly in equity — — — — — 1,710 — 1,710 — 1,710

Released on disposal of
subsidiaries — — — — — — — — (161 ) (161 )

(Loss) Profit for the year — — — — — — (36,610 ) (36,610 ) 77 (36,533 )

Total recognised income — — — — — 1,710 (36,610 ) (34,900 ) (84 ) (34,984 )
and expenses for
the year

Issue of shares upon 3,000 9,000 — — — — — 12,000 — 12,000
placement of shares

Equity settled share-based — — — 1,868 — — — 1,868 — 1,868
payment transactions

Issue on shares upon 751 4,799 — (1,868 ) — — — 3,682 — 3,682
exercise of share options

Share issue expense — (144 ) — — — — — (144 ) — (144 )

At 31 December 2006
19,536 48,848 2,099 — — 3,109 (5,440 ) 68,152 1,462 69,614

Note:

The capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate
of the nominal value of the issued share capital of a former subsidiary
which was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 1994 to rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

:
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash used in operations 28 (11,091) (2,709)
Income taxes paid (2,006) (825)

Net cash used in operating
activities (13,097) (3,534)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 71 45
Payment of construction cost

payable — (11,754)
Payment for prepaid lease payments — (3,275)
Purchase of club debenture — (220)
Purchase of property, plant and

equipment (4,194) (16,348)
Cash (used in) from

disposal of subsidiaries (242) 4,453
Proceeds from disposal of

investments held for trading — 8,337

Net cash used in investing
activities (4,365) (18,762)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issue of

new shares 11,856 —
Issue of shares on exercise

of share options 3,682 —
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders — (3,293)
Interest paid (543) (75)
Proceeds from new interest-

bearing borrowings 10,000 3,500
Repayment of interest-bearing

borrowings (4,262) (438)
Interest element paid on

obligations under finance leases (387) —
Repayment of obligations under

finance leases (1,656) (730)

Net cash from (used in)
financing activities 18,690 (1,036)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents 1,228 (23,332)

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year 6,044 29,348

Effect on exchange rate changes (65) 28

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of year 7,207 6,044

Analysis of the balances of

cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash 7,136 6,044

Cash and cash equivalents

attributable to the non-

current assets held for sale 13

(Note 13) 71 —

7,207 6,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

GFT Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability

company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed

on the Stock Exchange. The address of the Company’s

registered office and principal place of business are disclosed

in the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries

(the “Group”) are trading and manufacturing of toys, gifts

and premiums. The Group was also engaged in the

manufacturing and trading of consumer products, which

were discontinued in the current year (Note 11).

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective term includes

all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards

(“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also

comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange.

1.

11

2.

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance  (Continued)

These financial statements have been prepared on a

basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted

in the 2005 financial statements except for the

adoption of the amendment of HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4

as explained in note 3 to the financial statements. A

summary of the significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of

these financial statements is historical cost, except for

(1) certain financial instruments, which are measured

at fair value as explained in note 2(i) to the financial

statements; and (2) non-current assets held for sale,

which are stated at lower of carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell as explained in note 2(v) to the

financial statements.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Company and all of its

subsidiaries made up to 31 December. The results of

subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year

are included in the consolidated income statement

from the effective date of acquisition or up to the

effective date of disposal as appropriate.

2.

(a)

39

4

3

(b)

 (1) 

, 2 i  (2)

2 v

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions and balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised

losses resulting from intra-group transactions are

eliminated in the same way as unrealised profits but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net

assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are

not owned by the Company, whether directly or

indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which

the Group has not agreed any additional terms with

the holders of those interest which would result in

the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation

in respect of those interests that meets the definition

of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented

in the balance sheet within equity, separately from

equity attributable to the equity holders of the

Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group

are presented on the face of the income statement as

an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year

between minority interests and the equity holders of

the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the

minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the

excess, and any further losses applicable to the

minority, are charged against the Group’s interest

except to the extent that the minority has a binding

obligation to, and is able to, make additional

investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary

subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is

allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of

losses previously absorbed by the Group has been

recovered.

2.

(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity, in which the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies

so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in

subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses.

The carrying amount of investment is reduced to its

recoverable amount on an individual basis. Results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary, being the excess

of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s share

of the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities, is recognised as a separate

asset. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses, which is tested for impairment

annually or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be

impaired. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units for the purpose of impairment test and

determination of gain or loss on disposal. An

impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value

of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities over the cost of acquisition of businesses at

the date of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in income statement.

2.

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction

in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The

cost of an item of property, plant and equipment

comprises its purchase price and any directly

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use. Repairs

and maintenance are charged to the income statement

during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less

accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and

equipment, other than construction in progress, over

their estimated useful lives as set out below from the

date on which they are available for use and after

taking into account their estimated residual values,

using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item

of property, plant and equipment have different useful

lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on

a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings Over the shorter of the term

of the prepaid land lease

or 50 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of the term

improvements of the prepaid land lease

or 5 years

Plant and machinery 20% — 33.33%

Furniture, fixtures 20% — 33.33%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 25% — 33.33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over

the shorter of their expected useful lives or the term

of the leases.

2.

(f)

50

5

20%  33.33%

20%  33.33%

25%  33.33%
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost less

accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all

construction expenditure and other direct costs,

including interest costs, attributable to such projects.

Costs on completed construction works are transferred

to the appropriate asset category. No depreciation is

provided in respect of construction in progress until it

is completed and available for use.

(h) Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to

acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land.

The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised

over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis to

the income statement.

(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised

when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group’s

contractual rights to future cash flows from the

financial asset expire or when the Group transfers the

contractual rights to future cash flows to a third party.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the

liability is extinguished.

2.

(g)

(h)

(i)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments  (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other

receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market and are not held for trading. They

are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, except where receivables are interest-

free loans and without any fixed repayment term or

the effect of discounting would be insignificant. In such

case, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment

loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into

account any discount or premium on acquisition, over

the year to maturity. Gains and losses arising from

derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation

process are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses

whether there is objective evidence that financial assets

are impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets

carried at amortised cost is measured as the difference

between the asset’s carrying amount and the present

value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the

financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables, bank loans and other borrowings and

obligations under finance leases. All financial liabilities

are recognised initial ly at their fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

effective interest method, unless the effect of

discounting would be insignificant, in which case they

are stated at cost.

2.

(i)

.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments  (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that

requires the issuer of the contract to make specified

payments to reimburse the holder of the contract for

a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails

to make payment when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee

contract is initially recognised as deferred income

within trade and other payable at fair value, where

such information is available, otherwise, it is recognised

at consideration received and receivable. Subsequently,

it is measured at the higher of the amount initially

recognised, less accumulated amortisation, and the

amount of the provision, if any, that is required to settle

the commitment at the balance sheet date.

(j) Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement, cash equivalents represent short-term

highly liquid investments which are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to

an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank

overdrafts.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and

rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with

the time when the goods are delivered to customers

and the title is passed.

2.

(i)

(j)

(k)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a

time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding

and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income is recognised when the properties are

let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

(l) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of

the group entities, including subsidiaries are measured

using the currency of the pr imary economic

environment in which the group entities operate

(“functional currency”). The consolidated financial

statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (HK$),

which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation at year-end

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the income statement.

2.

(k)

(l)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(l) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On consolidation, the results and financial position of

all the group entities that have a functional currency

different from the presentation currency are translated

as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet

presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of the balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement

are translated at average exchange rates;

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity;

(d) upon disposal of a group entity, exchange

differences relating thereto and previously

recognised in reserves are recognised in the

income statement as part of the gain or loss on

disposal; and

(e) goodwi l l  and fa i r  va lue adjustments on

identifiable assets acquired arising on an

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of that foreign entity and translated

at the closing rates. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in the translation reserve.

2.

(l)

(a)

(b)

;

(c)

;

(d)

(e)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of

purchase and, where applicable, cost of conversion

and other costs that have been incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and condition,

is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling

price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

(n) Club debenture

Club debenture has indefinite useful life and is

measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(o) Impairment of other assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal

and external sources of information to determine

whether its property, plant and equipment, prepaid

lease payments, club debenture and investment in

subsidiaries have suffered an impairment loss or

impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists

or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based

on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and

value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the

recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group

estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest

group of  assets  that  generates  cash  f lows

independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-

generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying

amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-

generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised as an expense

immediately.

2.

(m)

(n)

(o)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying

amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would

have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss

is recognised as income statement.

(p) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as

assets of the Group at the lower of the fair value of

the leased assets and the present value of the minimum

lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor

is included in the balance sheet as finance lease

obligation. Finance charges, which represent the

difference between the total leasing commitments and

the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to

the income statement over the term of the relevant

lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of

charge on the remaining balance of the obligations

for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged

to income statement on a straight-line basis over the

term of the relevant lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in the income

statement as an integral part of the net consideration

agreed for the use of the leased asset. Contingent

rentals are recognised as expenses in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

2.

(o)

(p)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits — Defined contribution
plans

The obl igat ions for contr ibut ions to def ined

contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an

expense in the income statement as incurred and are

reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees

who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the

contributions. The assets of the scheme are held

separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund.

(r) Share-based payment transactions — Equity-
settled transactions

The fair value of share options granted to employees

is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding

increase in a share options reserve within equity. The

fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-

Scholes pricing model, taking into account the terms

and conditions upon which the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions

before becoming unconditionally entitled to the

options, the total estimated fair value of the options

is spread over the vesting period, taking into account

the probability that the options will vest.

2.

(q) -

(r)   
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Share-based payment transactions — Equity-
settled transactions (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the income statement for the
year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Group’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share options reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated profits). Share-based
payment transactions in which the Company grants
share options to subsidiaries’ employees are accounted
for as an increase in value of investments in subsidiaries
in the Company’s balance sheet which is eliminated
on consolidation.

(s) Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
if the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,
it is not accounted for.

2.

(r)   

(s)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at

the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period

when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,

based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted

or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that

it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences,

tax losses and credits can be utilised.

(t) Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more

intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled

by, or is under common control with, the Group;

or has an interest in the Group that gives it

significant influence over the Group; or has joint

control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is

a venturer;

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly

controlled or significantly influenced by or for

which significant voting power in such entity

resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e); or

2.

(s)

(t)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e) (a) (d)

(f) (d) (e)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(t) Related parties (Continued)

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

(u) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between Group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar
terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

2.

(t)

(g)

(u)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Segment reporting (Continued)

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and

corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

(v) Non-cur rent  assets  he ld  for  sa le  and
discontinued operation

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is

classified as held for sale if it is highly probable

that its carrying amount will be recovered

through a sale transaction rather than through

continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)

is available for sale in its present condition. A

disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed

of together as a group in a single transaction,

and liabilities directly associated with those assets

that will be transferred in the transactions.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)

classified as held for sale are measured at the

lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(ii) Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the

Group’s business, the operations and cash flows

of which can be clearly distinguished from the

rest of the Group and which represents a separate

major line of business or geographical area of

operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan

to dispose of a separate major line of business

or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to

resale.

2.

(u)

(v)

(i)

 

(ii)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Non-cur rent  assets  he ld  for  sa le  and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii) Discontinued operation (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs

upon disposal or when the operation meets the

criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i)

above), if earlier. It also occurs when the

operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,

a single amount is presented on the face of the

income statement, which comprises:

— the  pos t - tax  p ro f i t  o r  lo s s  o f  the

discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the

measurement to fair value less costs to sell,

or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal

group constituting the discontinued

operation.

(w) Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these financial

statements, the Group has not early adopted the new/

revised standards and interpretations issued by HKICPA

that are not yet effective for the current year. The

directors anticipate that the adoption of these new

HKFRS in the future periods will have no material

impact on the result of the Group.

2.

(v)

(ii)

(i)

.

(w)
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment) “Financial
guarantee contracts”

In prior years, financial guarantees issued by the Group were

disclosed as contingent liabilities in accordance with HKAS

37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

No provisions were made in respect of these guarantees

unless it was more likely than not that the guarantee would

be called upon.

With effect from 1 January 2006, HKAS 39 requires

recognising financial guarantees issued as financial liabilities

and measured initially at fair value, where the fair value can

be reliably measured. Subsequently, they are measured at

the higher of the amount initial ly recognised, less

accumulated amortisation, and the amount of the provision,

if any, that should be recognised in accordance with HKAS

37. The adoption of this new accounting policy had no

material effect on how the results and financial positions

for the current or prior accounting periods have been

prepared and presented.

3. /

39
4

37

39

37

( )
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

which are described in note 2 to the financial statements,

management makes various estimates based on past

experience, expectat ions of the future and other

information. The key sources affect the amounts recognised

in the financial information as disclosed below.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment

over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account

of their estimated residual values, using the straight line

method. The estimated useful life reflects the directors’

estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive

future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s

property, plant and equipment. The residual values reflect

the directors’ estimated amount that the Group would

currently obtain from disposal of the assets, after deducting

the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already

of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its

useful life.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired required an

estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units

to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use

calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash

flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and

a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected,

a material impairment loss may arise. During the year, the

directors determined that goodwill has impaired and such

impairment has been recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

4.

2



GFT Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2006 	�

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

5. TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover and revenue represent sale of goods at invoiced

value to customers net of return and discounts.

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations 130,085 165,810

Discontinued operation

(Note 11) 11 2,547 13,318

132,632 179,128

6. OTHER INCOME

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations

Interest income 71 45

Rental income 159 8,362

Sundry income 948 447

1,178 8,854

Discontinued operation

 (Note 11)  11 — 646

1,178 9,500

5.

.

6.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s

business and geographical segments. Business segment

information is chosen as the primary reporting format

because it is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial

reporting.

Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Business segments Nature of business activities

1. Toy products trading Sourcing, manufacturing and

and manufacturing distribution of toys and

premium

2. Securities trading Trading and investing of

and investments marketable securities

3. Consumer products Sourcing, manufacturing and

trading and distribution of consumer

manufacturing products

Certain comparative figures for segment information have

been restated and reclassified to conform with current year’s

presentation. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, such

classifications provide a more appropriate presentation of

the Group’s business segments.

7.

  

1.

2.

3.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments
(Continued)

2006

Discontinued
operation

` Continuing operations

Consumer
Toy products Securities products
trading and trading and trading and

manufacturing investments Total manufacturing Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
Revenue from

external customers 130,085 — 130,085 2,547 132,632

Segment results (27,350) (18) (27,368) (423) (27,791)

Other income 1,178 — 1,178
Unallocated operating

income and expenses (9,269) — (9,269)

Gain on disposal
of subsidiaries — 355 355

Finance costs (930) — (930)

Loss before taxation (36,389) (68) (36,457)
Taxation (76) — (76)

Loss for the year (36,465) (68) (36,533)

Assets
Segment assets 119,556 408 119,964 — 119,964

Unallocated assets 6,689 — 6,689

Total assets 126,653 — 126,653

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 53,684 — 53,684 — 53,684
Unallocated liabilities 3,355 — 3,355

Total liabilities 57,039 — 57,039

Other information
Capital expenditure 4,194 — 4,194 — 4,194
Depreciation

Business segment 5,112 12 5,124 — 5,124
Unallocated items 212 — 212

Amortisation on prepaid
lease payments 182 — 182 — 182

Significant non-cash
expenses (other than
depreciation and
amortisation)

Business segment 2,983 — 2,983 26 3,009
Unallocated items 1,136 — 1,136

7.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments
(Continued)

2005

Discontinued
operation

` Continuing operations

Consumer
Toy products Securities products

trading and trading and trading and
manufacturing investments Total manufacturing Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
Revenue from external

customers 157,473 8,337 165,810 13,318 179,128

Segment results 13,941 2,785 16,726 (2,625) 14,101

Other income 1,396 646 2,042
Unallocated operating

income and expenses (6,589) — (6,589)
Gain on disposal of

subsidiaries 10 2,583 2,593
Finance costs (85) (18) (103)

Profit before taxation 11,458 586 12,044
Taxation (872) (1) (873)

Profit for the year 10,586 585 11,171

Assets
Segment assets 132,793 67 132,860 3,318 136,178
Unallocated assets 4,104 — 4,104

Total assets 136,964 3,318 140,282

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 48,624 — 48,624 3,040 51,664
Unallocated liabilities 1,426 — 1,426

Total liabilities 50,050 3,040 53,090

Other information
Capital expenditure

Business segment 22,254 — 22,254 36 22,290
Unallocated items 58 — 58

Depreciation
Business segment 3,633 19 3,652 75 3,727
Unallocated items 202 — 202

Amortisation on prepaid
lease payments 179 — 179 — 179

Significant non-cash expenses
(other than depreciation
and amortisation) 29 — 29 912 941

7.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but

participates in the principal economic environments as

shown in the table below. Japan and Hong Kong are the

major markets for all of the Group’s businesses, and the

location of the toy products manufacturing is in the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In presenting information on the basis of geographical

segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical

location of customers. Segment assets and capital

expenditure are based on the geographical location of the

assets.

Total Capital

Revenue assets expenditure

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2006

Japan 52,623 5,534 —

Hong Kong 35,531 19,136 5

PRC 32,426 100,722 4,189

Taiwan 4,915 — —

Europe 4,408 390 —

Singapore 1,834 — —

United States of America 605 283 —

Others 290 588 —

132,632 126,653 4,194

7.
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Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditure

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(restated)

2005
Japan 72,012 5,558 —
Hong Kong 39,758 25,473 131
PRC 40,824 103,977 22,217
Europe 17,423 590 —
Singapore 1,268 — —
United States of America 6,839 2,466 —
Others 1,004 2,218 —

179,128 140,282 22,348

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments (Continued)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The emoluments paid or payable to every director for the
year ended 31 December 2006 is set out below:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kinds contribution Total

fees

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors:
Leung Wai Ho — 650 12 662
Wong Chung Shun — 585 12 597
Ha Kee Choy, Eugene 200 — — 200

Non-executive directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert 120 — — 120
Lam Kwok Cheong 120 — — 120
Lai Wing Leung, Peter 120 — — 120

560 1,235 24 1,819

7.

8.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to every director for the

year ended 31 December 2005 is set out below:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kinds contribution Total

fees

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors:

Leung Wai Ho — 700 12 712

Wong Chung Shun — 635 12 647

Ha Kee Choy, Eugene 290 — — 290

Non-executive directors:

Chui Chi Yun, Robert 120 — — 120

Lam Kwok Cheong 120 — — 120

Lai Wing Leung, Peter 120 — — 120

650 1,335 24 2,009

No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years

ended 31 December 2006 and 2005.

8.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the

Group, two (2005: two) are directors of the Company whose

emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 8 above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2005: three)

individuals were as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries, allowances and

benefits in kinds 1,723 1,805

Retirement scheme contributions 41 24

Share-based payments 934 —

2,698 1,829

The emoluments of the three (2005: three) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2006 2005

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

Nil — HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 2 3

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001

1,500,000 1 —

3 3

9.

: 

8 : 

: 
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10. TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of

17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the Group’s estimated assessable

profits arising from Hong Kong during the year.

The income tax provision in respect of operations in the

PRC and overseas is calculated at the applicable tax rates

on the estimated assessable profits, if any, for the year based

on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in

respect thereof.

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations

Current tax

Hong Kong 59 661

PRC Enterprise Income Tax — 216

Under (Over) provision in prior years

Hong Kong 17 (5)

Tax charge from continuing

operations 76 872

Discontinued operation

Current tax

Hong Kong — 1

Tax charge from discontinued

operation — 1

Total tax charge for the year 76 873

10.

17.5%

17.5%
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10. TAXATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of tax expense

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Loss) Profit before taxation

Continuing operations (36,389) 11,458

Discontinued operation (Note 11) 11 (68) 586

(36,457) 12,044

Income tax at applicable tax rate 17.5%

of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) 17.5% (6,380) 2,108

Non-deductible expenses 902 465

Tax exempt revenue (353) (1,204)

Unrecognised tax losses 5,240 1,303

Unrecognised temporary differences 13 —

Effect of tax exemptions granted

to PRC subsidiaries — (1,161)

Effect of different tax rates of

subsidiaries operating

in other jurisdictions 637 (633)

Under (Over) provision in prior years 17 (5)

Tax expense for the year 76 873

The applicable tax rate is Hong Kong profits tax rate of

17.5% (2005: 17.5%).

10.

17.5%

: 17.5%
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 22 June 2006, the Group disposed two non-wholly

owned subsidiaries, which manufacture and trade electronic

components and were a separate business segment of the

Group. The disposal transactions have been completed on

22 June 2006, details of the disposal of assets and liabilities

are disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements. The

results and net cash flows of the discontinued operation

for the current year up to the date of disposal and the prior

year are summarised as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Loss) Profit for the year from

discontinued operation

Revenue 2,547 13,318

Other income — 646

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 355 2,583

Expenses (2,970) (15,943)

Finance costs — (18)

(Loss) Profit before taxation (68) 586

Taxation — (1)

(Loss) Profit for the year from

discontinued operation (68) 585

Cash flows used in discontinued

operation

Net cash flows used in operating

activities (114) (1,016)

Net cash flows used in investing

activities — (61)

Net cash flows from financing

activities — 203

Net cash flows (114) (874)

11.

32
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12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
This is stated after charging (crediting):

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(a) Finance costs (a)
Interest on convertible notes

wholly repayable within
five years — 41

Interest on bank loans and
other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years 543 22

Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases 387 40

930 103
Attributable to discontinued

operation (Note 11) 11 — (18)

930 85

(b) Other items (b)
Staff costs (include directors’

emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other

benefits 17,444 19,136
Share options granted 1,868 —
Contribution to defined

contribution plans 2,362 1,053

21,674 20,189

Cost of inventories 131,923 138,487
Auditors’ remuneration 897 1,090
Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment 5,336 3,929
Amortisation on prepaid

lease payments 182 179
Provision for obsolete inventories 1,516 —
Provision for impairment losses

Goodwill (included in other
expenses) 1,136 909

Trade and other receivables
(included in administrative
expenses) 1,451 20

Net exchange losses 152 169
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 42 12
Operating lease payments

for premises 463 662
Gain on disposal of investments

held for trading — (2,863)

12.
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13. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 24 November 2006, the directors announced that the

Company entered into an agreement with a third party on

23 November 2006 to dispose of all its interest in certain

subsidiaries of the Group for an aggregate consideration of

HK$20,000,000. The principal assets held by the subsidiaries

are land use rights in respect of parcels of land situated in

the PRC. The disposal is expected to be completed in May

2007. The major classes of assets and liabilities of the

subsidiaries to be disposed classified as held for sale at the

balance sheet date are as follows:

Group

2006

HK$’000

Non-current assets classified

as held for sale

Goodwill 396

Property, plant and equipment 13,060

Prepaid lease payments 5,600

Bank balance and cash 71

19,127

Liabilities associated with non-

current assets classified as

held for sale

Due to a related company

(Note 13(a)) 13(a) (2,093)

(2,093)

Net assets classified as held

for sale 17,034

13.

20,000,000
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13. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

(a) Due to a related company

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The related company is owned

and controlled by Mr. Leung Wai Ho and Mr. Wong

Chung Shun, directors and shareholders of the

Company.

14. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to

the extent of loss of HK$18,165,000 (2005: HK$4,018,000).

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings

per share attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are based on the following data:

Earnings

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Loss) Profit for the year

attributable to equity holders

of the Company for the

purpose of basic (loss)

earnings per share (36,610) 10,056

Effect of dilutive potential

ordinary shares:

Interest on convertible notes N/A 41

Earnings for the purpose of

diluted earnings per share N/A 10,097

13.

(a)

14.

18,165,000

4,018,000

15.

(a)
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15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a) For continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Number of shares

2006 2005

Number of Number of

shares shares

’000 ’000

(restated)

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the

purpose of basic (loss)

earnings per share 654,390 628,074

Effect of dilutive potential

ordinary shares:

Share options issued

by the Company N/A 11,685

Convertible notes N/A 3,342

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the

purpose of diluted

earnings per share N/A 643,101

Note:

The number of shares in 2006 and 2005 were adjusted to

reflect the share consolidation of every five shares of

HK$0.01 each of the Company into two shares of HK$0.025

each which became effective on 6 March 2007. Comparative

figures have been restated accordingly.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2006

has not been shown because there was no dilutive potential

ordinary share in issue at the balance sheet date.

15.

(a)

0.01

0.025
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15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) For continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings

per share from continuing operations attributable to

the equity holders of the Company are based on the

following data:

Earnings

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Loss) Profit for the year

attributable to equity holders

of the Company (36,610) 10,056

Less:

(Loss) Profit for the year from

discontinued operation 67 (500)

(Loss) Earnings for the purpose

of basic (loss) earnings per

share from continuing

operations (36,543) 9,556

Effect of dilutive potential

ordinary shares:

Interest on convertible notes N/A 41

Earnings for the purpose

of diluted earnings per

share from continuing

operations N/A 9,597

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per

share.

15.

(b)
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15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(c) For discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is

HK0.01 cent per share (2005: earnings per share of

HK0.08 cent per share) and diluted loss per share for

the discontinued operation for the year ended 31

December 2006 is not applicable (2005: diluted

earnings per share of HK0.08 cent per share), based

on the loss for the year from the discontinued

operation of HK$67,000 (2005: profit for the year of

HK$500,000) and the denominators detailed above

for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share.

15.

(c)

0.01 : 

0.08

: 0.08

67,000 :

500,000
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction

Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

COST
At 1 Janaury 2005 31,625 126 12,504 2,116 479 50 46,900
Exchange adjustments 764 — 263 38 1 1 1,067
Additions 12,207 68 6,418 243 — 3,412 22,348
Transfer 53 — — — — (53 ) —
Disposals — — (4 ) (38 ) — — (42 )
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries — (24 ) — (138 ) — — (162 )

At 31 December 2005 44,649 170 19,181 2,221 480 3,410 70,111
Exchange adjustments 1,563 — 441 60 2 119 2,185
Additions 3,570 — 570 47 7 — 4,194
Transfer 3,200 — 295 — — (3,495 ) —
Disposals — (43 ) — (22 ) — — (65 )
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary — (74 ) (49 ) (75 ) — — (198 )
Reclassified as held for sale (13,576 ) — — — — — (13,576 )

At 31 December 2006 39,406 53 20,438 2,231 489 34 62,651

DEPRECIATION
At 1 Janaury 2005 150 49 726 199 98 — 1,222
Exchange adjustments 2 — — — — — 2
Charged for the year 777 36 2,586 431 99 — 3,929
Disposals — — (2 ) (28 ) — — (30 )
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries — — — (33 ) — — (33 )

At 31 December 2005 929 85 3,310 569 197 — 5,090
Exchange adjustments 70 — 219 25 1 — 315
Charged for the year 931 15 3,880 410 100 — 5,336
Disposals — (16 ) — (7 ) — — (23 )
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary — (48 ) (26 ) (28 ) — — (102 )
Reclassified as held for sale (516 ) — — — — — (516 )

At 31 December 2006 1,414 36 7,383 969 298 — 10,100

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2006 37,992 17 13,055 1,262 191 34 52,551

At 31 December 2005 43,720 85 15,871 1,652 283 3,410 65,021

16.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Group (Continued)
The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment includes an amount of HK$4,800,000 (2005:
HK$6,000,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate net book
value at the balance sheet date of HK$42,792,000 (2005:
HK$Nil) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to a subsidiary of the Group.

17. GOODWILL

16.

4,800,000
6,000,000

42,792,000

17.

Group

HK$’000

COST
At 1 January 2005 8,413
Adjustments to accumulated

amortisation on adoption 3
of HKFRS 3 (696)

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries (1,075)

At 31 December 2005 6,642
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary (909)
Reclassified as held for sale (396)

At 31 December 2006 5,337

AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2006 696
Adjustments to accumulated

amortisation on adoption 3
of HKFRS 3 (696)

At 31 December 2005 and 2006 —

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2005 —
Provided for the year 909

At 31 December 2005 909
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary (909)
Provided for the year 1,136

At 31 December 2006 1,136

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2006 4,201

At 31 December 2005 5,733
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17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units

(CGU) identified according to business segment and country

of operation. The entire amount of goodwill have been

allocated to the toy products trading and manufacturing

segment located in Hong Kong:

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based

on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow

projections based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period (2005: ten-year

period), and a discount rate of 7.8% per annum (2005: 7.8%

per annum). In 2006, cash flows for the five-year period

were extrapolated using a 10% growth rate, while in 2005,

cash flows for the first five-year and the last five-year period

were extrapolated using a 10% and zero growth rate,

respectively. Another key assumption for the value in use

calculations is the budgeted gross margin, which is

determined based on the unit’s past performance and

management’s expectations for the market development.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change

in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is

based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to

exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.

17.

7.8%

7.8%

10%

10%
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-

term leasehold land located outside Hong Kong. The cost is

amortised over the leasehold period. The amount to be

amortised more than twelve months after the balance sheet

date amounted to HK$3,327,000 (2005: HK$8,698,000).

The amount to be amortised within the next twelve months

after the balance sheet date of HK$72,000 (2005:

HK$180,000) is included in current assets.

At the balance sheet date, all the leasehold lands were

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to a subsidiary

of the Group (2005: HK$nil).

19. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost , 1 1
Equity share-based payment

in subsidiaries 1,868 —

1,869 1
Less: Impairment losses (1,868) —

1 1

In accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment, share-

based payment transactions in which an entity receives

services from its employees as consideration for equity

instruments of the entity are accounted for as equity-settled

transactions (see note 2(r)). The Company recognises the

grant of equity instruments to its subsidiaries’ employees

and eligible participants amounted to HK$1,868,000 (2005:

HK$nil) as capital contributions to its subsidiaries.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at the balance

sheet date, which in the opinion of the directors principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group are set

out in note 39 to the financial statements.

18.

3,327,000

8,698,000

72,000

180,000

19.

2

2(r)

1,868,000

39
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20. INVENTORIES

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw material 4,866 4,319

Work in progress 1,918 2,115

Finished goods 391 2,333

7,175 8,767

All inventories, excluding those fully provided for with nil

carrying value, are stated at cost.

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20.

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade receivables 21(a) 23,006 35,384 — —

Other receivables

Deposits, prepayments

and other receivables 9,642 10,235 224 198

Due from subsidiaries

21(b) — — 69,380 70,082

9,642 10,235 69,604 70,280

32,648 45,619 69,604 70,280

21.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(a) Trade receivables

The Group allows an average credit period ranging

from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers. The ageing

analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment losses

for bad and doubtful debts) as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 60 days 0 60 10,851 19,345

61 to 90 days 61 90 3,803 5,031

Over 90 days 90 8,352 11,008

23,006 35,384

(b) Due from subsidiaries

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and has

no fixed term of repayment.

21.
)

(a)

30 90

(b)
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables 22(a) 20,099 17,617 — —

Other payables

Accrued charges and

other creditors 17,606 11,987 2,941 950

Due to related

companies 22(b) 4,827 13,420 — —

22,433 25,407 2,941 950

42,532 43,024 2,941 950

(a) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payable as at the balance

sheet date is as follows:

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 to 60 days 0 60 5,540 6,566

61 to 90 days 61 90 836 5,694

Over 90 days 90 13,723 5,357

20,099 17,617

22.

(a)
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(b) Due to related companies

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The related companies are

owned and controlled by Mr. Leung Wai Ho and Mr.

Wong Chung Shun, directors and shareholders of the

Company.

23. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Group

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Fixed rate loans wholly

repayable within five

years

Bank loan, secured 23(a) 8,800 —

Loan from a third party,

unsecured 23(b) — 3,062

8,800 3,062

Current portion 8,800 1,750

Non-current portion — 1,312

8,800 3,062

Note:

(a) The bank loan is interest-bearing at 7.254% per annum and

repayable within 1 year. The loan is secured by certain

leasehold land and buildings held by the Group in PRC (see

note 16 and note 18) and personal guarantee by Mr. Leung

Wai Ho, a director and shareholder of the Company.

(b) The loan was unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.8% per annum

and had been fully repaid during the year.

22.

(b)

 

23.

(a) 7.254%

16

18
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24. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Group

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease

payments payments

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amount payable:

Within one year 2,043 2,043 1,813 1,656

In the second to fifth

years inclusive 1,873 3,916 1,801 3,614

3,916 5,959 3,614 5,270

Future finance charges (302) (689) — —

Present value of lease

obligations 3,614 5,270 3,614 5,270

The average lease term for its plant and equipment under

finance leases is 3 years (2005: 3 years). Interest rate

underlying all obligations under finance leases is fixed at

8.4% per annum. No arrangements have been entered into

for contingent rental payments.

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses

of HK$52,947,000 (2005: HK$23,472,000) available for

offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been

recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses will

not expire except for HK$22,659,000 (2005: HK$597,000),

which will expire if they are not ulitised to set off against

the income within five years from the year in which they

arose under the current tax legislation.

24.

3

3

8.4%

25.

52,947,000

23,472,000
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

2006 2005

Number of Share Number of Share

shares capital Share  capital

’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$’000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each 0.01

50,000,000 500,000 50,000,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid:

At beginning of the year 1,578,540 15,785 1,528,540 15,285

Issue of shares upon

conversion of convertible

notes (Note a)  a — — 50,000 500

Issue of shares upon

placement of shares  b

(Note b) 300,000 3,000 — —

Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options (Note c) c 75,142 751 — —

At balance sheet date 1,953,682 19,536 1,578,540 15,785

Notes:

(a) On 30 September 2004, the Company issued unsecured

convertible notes with an aggregate principal amount of

HK$2,500,000. The convertible notes bear interest at a rate

of 3% per annum. The convertible notes can be converted

into ordinary shares in the Company at a conversion price

of HK$0.05 per share, subject to adjustment, at the option

of noteholders, on any business day after 30 days following

the date of issue of the convertible notes and the maturity

date is 29 March 2006.

On 3 March 2005, all convertible noteholders exercised their

rights to convert the notes into 50,000,000 ordinary shares

of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.05 per share.

26.

(a)

2,500,000

3%

0.05

0.05 50,000,000
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) Pursuant to a placing and subscription agreement dated 11

October 2006 made between the Company, Charm

Management Limited (“Charm”), a substantial shareholder

of the Company, and the placing agent, the placing agent

agreed to place 300,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company

held by Charm at a placing price of HK$0.04 per share. Also,

the Company agreed to allot and issue 300,000,000 ordinary

shares in the Company to Charm at a subscription price of

HK$0.04 per share.

On 25 October 2006, 300,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted to Charm at a

consideration of HK$0.04 per share. The net proceeds were

used for additional working capital.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2006, options were

exercised for 75,141,600 ordinary shares at the exercise price

of HK$0.049 per share under the share option schemes.

All the shares issued during both years rank pari passu with

the existing shares of the Company in all respects.

26.

(b) Charm

Management Limited Charm

Charm 300,000,000

0.04

0.04

300,000,000

Charm

Charm

300,000,000

0.01 0.04

(c)

75,141,600 0.049
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27. RESERVES

Company

Convertible Share

Share Contributed notes equity options Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2005

33,124 49,948 262 — (27,538 ) 55,796

Issue of shares upon conversion

of convertible notes 2,069 — (262 ) — — 1,807

Loss for the year — — — — (4,018 ) (4,018 )

At 31 December 2005

35,193 49,948 — — (31,556 ) 53,585

At 1 January 2006

35,193 49,948 — — (31,556 ) 53,585

Issue of shares upon placement

of shares 9,000 — — — — 9,000

Equity settled share-based

payment transactions — — — 1,868 — 1,868

Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options 4,799 — — (1,868 ) — 2,931

Share issue expense (144 ) — — — — (144 )

Loss for the year — — — — (18,165 ) (18,165 )

At 31 December 2006

48,848 49,948 — — (49,721) 49,075

27.
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28. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

(Loss) Profit before taxation (36,457) 12,044

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 5,336 3,929

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of trade and

other receivables 1,451 20

Impairment loss on goodwill 1,136 909

Provision for obsolete inventories

1,516 —

Equity settled share-based

transactions 1,868 —

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 42 12

Gain on disposal of investments

held for trading — (2,863)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (355) (2,593)

Amortisation of prepaid lease

payments 182 179

Net exchange (gain) loss (398) 169

Finance costs 930 103

Interest income (71) (45)

Changes in working capital:

Inventories 16 (6,521)

Trade and other

receivables 9,666 (9,078)

Trade and other

payables 4,047 1,026

Cash used in operations (11,091) (2,709)

28.
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29. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group has

no major non-cash transaction. In 2005, the major non-

cash transactions were as follows:

(a) The Group entered into a finance lease arrangement

in respect of property, plant and equipment with a

total capital value at the inception of lease of

HK$6,000,000.

(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment of HK$4,330,000 was transferred to set-

off the construction cost payable due to the same

contractor.

30. SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the resolution passed at a special general

meeting held on 17 September 2004, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The Company

operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives

and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants

of the Scheme include the Company’s or its subsidiaries’

executive directors, non-executive directors and employees,

and any business consultants, agents, financial or legal

advisers and any other persons who the Board consider, at

its sole discretion, will contribute or have contributed to

the Group.

The grant of share options should be accepted within 30

days from the date of the grant, at a consideration of HK$1,

being payable by the grantee upon the acceptance of grant.

The options may be exercised at any time within the period

commencing from the date of grant of the options and

expiring on the date determined by the directors, but in

any event such exercise period shall not exceed a period of

ten years commencing on the date the relevant option is

deemed to be granted.

29.
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30. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
The exercise price of the share options was determinable by

the directors, but was not able to be less than the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,

which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price

of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily

quotation sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of

the Company’s share.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in

the Company in respect of which options may be granted

when aggregated with any other share option scheme of

the Company is not permitted to exceed 127,854,000

shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of adoption of the Scheme. Subject

to the issue of a circular and the approval of the shareholders

of the Company in general meeting and/or such other

requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time

to time, the Board may refresh the limit at any time to 10%

of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of

approval by the shareholders of the Company in general

meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoings, the shares which

may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options

granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any

other share option schemes of the Company at any time

shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to

time.

No option may be granted to any person if the total number

of shares of the Company already issued and issuable to

him under all the options granted to him in any 12 month

period up to and including the date of grant exceeding 1%

of total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall

be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and

the approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Such

participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)

abstaining from voting and/or other requirements prescribed

under the Listing Rules from time to time. Options granted

to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive

directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital

or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved

in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

30.
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30. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
(a) Movements in share options

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options during the year.

Number of share options

Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise Outstanding  during during during Outstanding

Date of grant Exercise period  price at 1.1.2006 the year the year the year at 31.12.2006

HK$

Directors 1 December 2004 31 December 2004 to 0.0676 7,671,240 — — (7,671,240 ) —
30 December 2006

Employees 1 December 2004 31 December 2004 to 0.0676 51,141,600 — — (51,141,600 ) —
30 December 2006

16 November 2006 16 November 2006 to 0.0490 — 37,570,800 (37,570,800 ) — —
15 November 2008

Others 1 December 2004 31 December 2004 to 0.0676 43,470,360 — — (43,470,360 ) —
30 December 2006

16 November 2006 16 November 2006 to 0.0490 — 37,570,800 (37,570,800 ) — —
15 November 2008

 

102,283,200 75,141,600 (75,141,600 ) (102,283,200 ) —

Weight average exercise
prices (HK$)

0.0676 0.0490 0.0490 0.0676 N/A 

30.
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30. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(a) Movements in share options (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the

Company’s share options during the prior year.

Number of share options

Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise Outstanding  during during during Outstanding

Date of grant Exercise period  price at 1.1.2005 the year the year the year at 31.12.2005

HK$

Directors 1 December 2004 31 December 2004 to 0.0676 7,671,240 — — — 7,671,240

30 December 2006

Employees 1 December 2004 31 December 2004 to 0.0676 63,927,000 — — (12,785,400 ) 51,141,600

30 December 2006

Others 1 December 2004 31 December 2004 to 0.0676 43,470,360 — — — 43,470,360

30 December 2006

115,068,600 — — (12,785,400 ) 102,283,200

Weight average exercise

prices (HK$)

0.0676 — — 0.0676 0.0676

At the balance sheet date, the weighted average

remaining contractual life of the Company’s share

options was nil year (2005: 1 year).

30.
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30. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(b) Share options exercised during the year

During the year, all share options granted in the year

ended 31 December 2006 were exercised at the

exercise price of HK$0.049 per share. The weighted

average closing price of the shares of the Company at

the date of exercise was HK$0.048 per share.

(c) Fair value of share options granted during the
year and assumptions

The fair value of the share options granted during the

year is HK$0.0249 (2005: HK$nil). The estimate of the

fair value of the share options granted is measured

based on Black-Scholes pricing model. The inputs into

the model were as follows:

Closing price of the shares

at the date of grant HK$0.052

Exercise price HK$0.049

Expected volatility 78.75%

Risk-free interest rate 6.75%

Option life 2 years

Expected dividend yield 0.00%

The expected volatility was determined by using the

historical volatility of the share price of the Company

over the previous one year.

The Black-Scholes pricing model has been used to

estimate the fair value of the options. The variables

and assumptions used in computing the fair value of

the share options are based on the directors’ best

estimate. The value of an option varies with different

variables of certain subjective assumptions.

30.
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.

The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of

the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The Group

contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme,

this contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are

members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan

operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries

are required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll

costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

ret i rement benef i t  p lan is  to make the specif ied

contributions.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group

to the relevant retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

31.

5%

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

MPF Scheme 210 326

State-management

retirement benefit schemes 2,152 727

2,362 1,053
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

2005

On 19 November 2005, the Group disposed of its entire

interest in a 50.01% owned subsidiary, Unique Force

Limited. The disposal was completed on 19 November 2005.

On 28 December 2005, the Group also entered into an

agreement to dispose of its entire interest in a 70% owned

subsidiary, Maple Force Limited. The disposal was completed

on 30 December 2005.

2006

On 22 June 2006, the Group disposed of its entire interest

in two 51% owned subsidiaries, Thunder Force Limited

(“Thunder Force”) and Thunder Tech Electronic Co., Limited

(“Thunder Tech”). Thunder Force was engaged in trading

and manufacturing of electronic components while Thunder

Tech was inactive. The Group discontinued its consumer

products business at the time of disposal of these subsidiaries

on 22 June 2006.

32.
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  (Continued)

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net (liabilities) assets disposed

of by the Group:

Property, plant and equipment 96 129

Inventories 60 475

Trade and other receivables 1,854 4,529

Bank balances and cash 292 800

Bank overdrafts — (558)

Trade and other payables (2,446) (2,387)

(144) 2,988

Minority interests (161) (1,961)

(305) 1,027

Attributable goodwill — 1,075

(305) 2,102

Gain on disposal

Continuing operations — 10

Discontinued operation (Note 11) 11 355 2,583

355 2,593

Total consideration satisfied by cash 50 4,695

32.
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  (Continued)

Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net cash (outflow) inflow

arising on disposal:

Cash consideration 50 4,695

Bank balances and cash disposed of (292) (800)

Bank overdrafts disposed of — 558

(242) 4,453

The impact of Thunder Force and Thunder Tech on the

Group’s result and cash flows in the current and prior periods

is disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

32.
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Related party relationship Nature of transactions 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Key management personnel, Compensation
including directors (note)

Short-term benefits 3,021 3,430

Post employment benefits 48 48

3,069 3,478

Companies under common control Administrative expenses paid:
by executive directors and
shareholders of the Company — staff welfare 157 —

 
— transportation 39 10

 
— security 403 —

 
— office supplies — 34

 

599 44

Sales of goods 84 976

Purchase of goods — 36

Transfer of land use right — 7,500

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year,

the Group had the following transactions with related

parties.

33.

Note:

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined

by the board of directors having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and

other receivables, trade and other payables, interest-bearing

borrowings, convertible notes and obligation under finance

leases. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed

in respective notes and the policies on how to mitigate these

risks are set out below. The management manages and

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Certain trade and other receivables and trade and other

payables of the Group are denominated in foreign

currencies. The Group currently does not have a foreign

currency hedging policy, However, management monitors

foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the potential changes in interest

rates that may have an adverse effect on the Group in the

current and future years.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk through

the impact of interest rates changes on interest bearing

debts and interest bearing cash. The Group does not enter

into any derivative instruments to hedge this risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on

their obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group,

resulting in a loss to the Group. The Group has adopted

procedures extending credit terms to customers and in

monitoring its credit risk.

34.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s current credit practices include assessment and

valuation of customer’s credit reliability and periodic review

of their financial status to determine the credit limits to be

granted.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the

counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end

of the financial year in relation to each to each class of

recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those

assets as stated in the balance sheet.

As at the balance sheet, the Group has no significant

concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a

number of customers and counterparts.

35. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital expenditure commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no

commitment (2005: HK$1,651,000) in respect of

expenditure on property, plant and equipment

contracted but not provided for in the financial

statements.

(b) Commitments under operating leases

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable

by the Group for certain of its warehouses and office

premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term

of two years (2005: two years) and rentals are fixed

during the lease period.

34.
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35. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Commitments  under  operat ing leases
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases, which are payable as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 300 483

In the second to fifth

year inclusive 157 117

457 600

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out part of its properties under

operating leases with average lease terms of 2 to 3

years.  The future aggregate minimum rental

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 47 793

In the second to fifth

year inclusive 43 793

90 1,586

35.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group

On 8 October 2004, Mr. Kwok Chin Wing (“Kwok”), a

former director of the Company, commenced legal

proceedings (“the Action”) against the Company in respect

of the loans due from two former subsidiaries of the

Company, namely, Rockapetta Industrial Company Limited

and Grand Extend Investment Limited, for a sum of

approximately HK$44.5 million and accrued interest thereof.

The Action is still pending in the High Court of Hong Kong

SAR. The Company had already completed discovery of all

documentary evidence and exchange of witness statements

as to the fact pursuant to the directions of the Court and

also obtained Counsel’s advice on the pleadings, evidence

and merit of defence in the Action. The Company was ready

to proceed with the trial of the Action since early 2006.

However, Kwok took out applications in the Action in July

2006 for substantial amendments to his Re-Re-Amended

Statement of Claim (“the Amendment Application”) and

joinder of party to the Action (“the Joinder Application”).

The Amendment Application and the Joinder Application

had substantially delayed the setting of the Action for trial.

The Amendment Application and the Joinder Application

were granted by the Court on 19 April 2007 and the parties

are now working on the proper directions to be sought for

the further conduct of the Action. Notwithstanding the

substantial amendments made to the Re-Re-Amended

Statement of Claim and the joining of a new party to the

Action, the Solicitors and Counsel acting for the Company

still hold good for their advice previously delivered to the

Company. With the benefit of the advice of the Solicitors

and Counsel acting for the Company, the directors of the

Company formed the opinion that Kwok does not have a

valid claim against the Company and therefore it is unlikely

to have any material adverse financial impact on the Group.

36.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Company

At 31 December 2006, the Company had executed an

unconditional and irrevocable guarantee to secure banking

facilities in respect of a finance lease granted to a subsidiary.

The aggregate outstanding balances due by the subsidiary

amounted to HK$3,614,000 as at 31 December 2006 (2005:

HK$5,270,000).

37. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a) On 23 November 2006, the Company entered into an

agreement with Sky Hawk International Limited, a third

part, to dispose its entire interest in Good Prosper

Trading Limited (“GPTL”), a wholly owned subsidiary,

and the amounts owed by GPTL to the Company and

its subsidiaries that are outstanding at completion of

the agreement at a consideration of HK$20 million.

The disposal is expected to be completed in May 2007.

(b) On 24 January 2007, the Board proposed to effect

the share consolidation (“Share Consolidated”) on the

basis that every five issued and unissued shares of

HK$0.01 each wi l l  be consol idated into two

consolidated shares of HK$0.025 each (“Consolidated

Share”). The Share Consolidation was approved by the

shareholders of the Company in the special general

meeting held on 5 March 2007 (“SGM”) and the Share

Consolidation was effective from 6 March 2007.

Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the

circular issued by the Company dated 14 February

2007.

36.
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37. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

(c) On 24 January 2007, the Company entered into a

conditional share placing agreement with Hani

Securities (H.K.) Limited (“Placing Agent”) whereby the

Placing Agent agreed to place up to 340,000,000 new

Consolidated Shares at a price of HK$0.10 per

Consolidated Share to placees who are independent

third parties procured by the Placing Agent. Of those

Consolidated Shares, the Placing Agent has agreed to

place 150,000,000 new Consolidated Shares on a fully

underwritten basis, with the balance of up to

190,000,000 new Consolidated Shares to be placed

on a best effort basis. The net proceeds from the share

placing amounted to approximately HK$33 million. The

share placing was approved by the shareholders of the

Company in the SGM.

220,000,000 new Consolidated Shares and 120,000,000

new Consolidated Shares were issued and allotted to

HKSCC Nominees Limited at a consideration of HK$0.10

per Consolidated Share on 14 March 2007 and 11 April

2007 respectively. The net proceeds of approximately

HK$33 million will be used as additional working capital

and for future investment opportunities for the Group.

These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares of

the Company in all respects.

37.
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37. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)
(d) On 24 January 2007, the Company entered into a

conditional note placing agreement with the Placing
Agent whereby the Placing Agent would procure, on
a best effort basis, subscribers to subscribe for the
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$34 million to be issued by the Company
("Convertible Notes") which carrying right to convert
into shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$0.10 per Consol idated Share (subject to
adjustments). The net proceeds from the note placing
will amount to approximately HK$33.6 million and will
be used as additional working capital and for future
investment opportunities for the Group. The issue of
Convertible Notes and note placing were approved by
the shareholders of the Company in the SGM. Details
of which are set out in the circular issued by the
Company dated 14 February 2007.

(e) On the 16 April 2007, Prosper Overseas Limited
("POL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement with Innovative Sonic
International Limited, a company which is beneficially
owned and controlled by Mr. Leung Wai Ho and Mr.
Wong Chung Shun, both are directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company, to dispose of its entire
interest in GFT Holding Limited and the rights of and
benefits in the total amount of loans or advances
outstanding and owing from Great Force Technology
Limited, one of the subsidiaries of GFT Holding Limited,
to POL as at the date of completion of the agreement
at a consideration of HK$2.00. The disposal is
conditional upon (a) the approval by independent
shareholders at a special general meeting; (b) the
release by the banks of the obligation of the Company
as a corporate guarantor under the existing banking
facilities granted to GFT Holding Limited group; and
(c) all necessary consents being granted by third parties.
Details of disposal are set out in the announcement
issued by the Company dated 17 April 2007.

37.
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38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative f igures, part icularly relate to

discontinued operation, have been reclassified to conform

to the current year’s presentation.

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Issued
Place of  and paid-up Proportion ownership

 incorporation/ Place of share capital/  interest held by the Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital Company  activities

Directly Indirectly

Capital Prosper Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Inactive
ordinary share

2

GFT Group Limited British Virgin PRC US$1 — 100% Inactive
Islands ordinary share

1

GFT Holding Limited British Virgin Hong Kong US$640,000 — 100% Investment
Islands ordinary share holding

640,000

GFT International Macau Macau MOP100,000 — 100% Trading of
(Macao Commercial quota share  electronic
Offshore) Limited toys

100,000

Good Prosper Trading British Virgin Hong Kong US$1 100% — Securities
Limited Islands ordinary share trading and

 investment
1

38.

39.
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Issued

Place of  and paid-up Proportion ownership

 incorporation/ Place of share capital/  interest held by the Principal

Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital Company  activities

Directly Indirectly

Great Force Technology Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 — 100% Investment

Limited ordinary share  holding

2

New Challenge Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 85% Research and

ordinary share development

of toy

products and

provision of

marketing

services

1,000,000

Prosper Overseas Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Investment

ordinary share holding

2

Prosper Services Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Provision of

ordinary share management

services to

 the Group

2

39.
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Issued

Place of  and paid-up Proportion ownership

 incorporation/ Place of share capital/  interest held by the Principal

Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital Company  activities

Directly Indirectly

Sky Union (Far East) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4 — 100% Investment

ordinary share holding

Yanyan Force Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 — 60% Trading

ordinary share of toys, gifts

and premiums

100

Wiz Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% — Provision of

ordinary share management

services to

the Group

1

( ) PRC PRC HK$27,898,000 — 100% Manufacturing

 (Note)  paid-up capital  and sales of

 toys

27,898,000

39.
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Issued

Place of  and paid-up Proportion ownership

 incorporation/ Place of share capital/  interest held by the Principal

Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital Company  activities

Directly Indirectly

( )  (Note) PRC PRC US$4,200,000 — 100% Investment

paid-up capital in land

4,200,000

PRC PRC RMB500,000 — 100% Investment

 (Note) paid-up capital in land

500,000

PRC PRC RMB500,000 — 100% Investment

 (Note) paid-up capital in land

500,000

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: These companies are wholly foreign-owned enterprise

established in the PRC.

None of these subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

39.
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Financial Summary

For the year ended 31 December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(restated)

Turnover 119,718 86,981 165,291 179,128 132,632

(Loss) Profit before
taxation (8,187) (22,586) (1,666) 12,044 (36,457)

Taxation (4) — (1,786) (873) (76)

(Loss) Profit for
the year (8,191) (22,586) (3,452) 11,171 (36,533)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of

the Company (8,412) (21,421) (6,169) 10,056 (36,610)
Minority interests 221 (1,165) 2,717 1,115 77

(8,191) (22,586) (3,452) 11,171 (36,533)

RESULTS

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY

At 31 December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(restated)

Total assets 82,996 47,993 142,168 140,282 126,653
Total liabilities (23,679) (10,740) (64,599) (53,090) (57,039)

NET ASSETS 59,317 37,253 77,569 87,192 69,614

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable to

equity holders of
the Company 58,152 36,523 71,884 85,646 68,152

Minority interests 1,165 730 5,685 1,546 1,462

TOTAL EQUITY 59,317 37,253 77,569 87,192 69,614

Note:

The figures in this table have been restated to reflect the adoption of
new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard in 2005.
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